United Nations A\c.2/53/5R 26

General Assembly Distr.: General

V Fifty-third session 13 November 1998

2 .
=7 (Official Records Original: English

Second Committee

Summary record of the 26th meeting
Held at Headquarters, New York, on Wednesday, 28 October 1998, at 3 p.m.

Chairman Mr. Oziigergin (Vice-Chairman) ............ouiirriiie i, (Turkey)
Contents
Agenda item 93: Sustainable development and international economic cooperation
(continued

(d) Renewal of the dialogue on strengthening international economic cooperation for
development through partnershigoftinued

Agenda item 94: Environment and sustainable developnumtt{nued

(c) Implementation of the outcome of the Global Conference on the Sustainable
Development of Small Island Developing Statesiftinued

(e) Implementation of the United Nations Convention to Combat Desertification in
Those Countries Experiencing Serious Drought and/or Desertification, Particularly
in Africa (continued

Agenda item 98: Implementation of the First United Nations Decade for the Eradication
of Poverty (1997-2006)

Agenda item 96: Training and research
(a) United Nations University

Agenda item 97: Permanent sovereignty of the Palestinian people in the occupied
Palestinian territory, including Jerusalem, and of the Arab population in the occupied
Syrian Golan over their natural resources

This record is subject to correction. Corrections should be sent under the signature of a member of the
delegation concernedithin one week of the date of publicatibmthe Chief of the Official Records
Editing Section, room DC2-750, 2 United Nations Plaza, and incorporated in a copy of the record.

Corrections will be issued after the end of the session, in a separate corrigendum for each Committee.

98-81937 (E)


<<ODS JOB NO>>N9881937E<<ODS JOB NO>> <<ODS DOC SYMBOL1>>A/C.2/53/SR.26<<ODS DOC SYMBOL1>> <<ODS DOC SYMBOL2>><<ODS DOC SYMBOL2>> 


A/C.2/53/SR.26

In the absence of the Chairman, Mr. Oziigergin (Turkeyje) Implementation of the United Nations Convention
Vice-Chairman, took the Chair. to Combat Desertification in Those Countries
Experiencing Serious Drought and/or

The meeting was called to order at 3.05 p.m. . . . .
g P Desertification, Particularly in Africa (continued

Draft resolution on the implementation of the United
Agenda item 93: Sustainable development and Nations Convention to Combat Desertification in Those
international economic cooperation(continued Countries Experiencing Serious Drought and/or

Desertification, Particularly in Africg(A/C.2/53/L.16)

4, Mr. Todjinou (Benin), introducing the draft resolution
on behalf of the Group of 77 and China, drew attention to
paragraphs 5 and 12.

(d) Renewal of the dialogue on strengthening
international economic cooperation for
development through partnership (continued

Draft resolution on globalization and liberalization of
the world economy — prvention of the marginalization of Agenda item 98: Implementation of the First United
weak or vulnerable economiéa/C.2/53/L.14) Nations Decade for the Eradication of Poverty

1. Mr. Calovski (The former Yugoslav Republic of (1997-2006)A/C.2/53/L.18)
Macedonia), introducing the draft resolution, said that, in theraft resolution on the International Year of
view of the sponsors, prevention of marginalization would bicrocredit, 2005(A/C.2/53/L.18)

the priority issue in the future. It had no financial implication% The Chairman drew attention to the draft resolution

and the sponsors hoped it could be adopted by consensus. ag}ﬁained in document A/C.2/53/L.18, which the Economic
resolution did not seek to establish a new categoryofStatgﬁd Social Council had recommended to the General
or to define the specific measures needed to prevent tRQsemblyfor adoption

negative effects of globalization and liberalization.

. . . Agenda item 96: Training and research
Agenda item 94: Environment and sustainable

development(continued (A/C.2/53/L.15, L.16 and L.17) (a) United Nations University (A/53/31, A/53/392
Draft resolution on the review of progress made in and Add.1, A/53/408)
implementing conventions related to environment and 6 Mr. van Ginkel (Rector, United Nations University

sustainable évelopmen(A/C.2/53/L.17) (UNU)) introducing the report of the Council of the United

2. Mr.Maksimychev (Russian Federation), introducing Nations University (A/53/31), said that the past year had been
the draft resolution, said that the environmental conventions primarily one of taking stock and of reorientation. The
were growing in significance, and that the links between the  Council had decideddoct a comprehensive evaluation
conventions could have an impact in the area of policy ofthe work of the University over the past 20 years and the
recommendations. The General Assembly should consider the  Joint Inspection Unit hadddstaken an evaluation. Yet
situation from a cross-sectoral and integral perspective, and another impetus for self-evaluation were the proposals made

the draft resolution presented one possible approach. the Secretary-General in response to General Assembly
resolution 51/187, which were discussed in document
(c) Implementation of the outcome of the Global A/53/408. Those evaluation processes were reaching an end,
Conference on the Sustainable Development of and the peer review group report would be submitted for
Small Island Developing Stategcontinued consideration to the Council in Decemt998.
Draft resolution on the implementation of the outcome of.  Inthe meantime, measures had been taken to enhance
the Global Conference on the Sustainablev@lopment  the internal cohesion of the University and the synergy in its
of Small Island Developing Statéa/C.2/53/L.15) activities by strengthening the academic capabilities of the

Tokyo centre and the links with other host countries. In
ggdition, the structure of its programmes would be centred
ﬁ\éound two major priorities, peace and governance and the
environment and sustainable development.

3. Mr. Hapsoro (Indonesia) introduced the draft
resolution on behalf of the Group of 77 and China, adding th
Australia, Canada, New Zealand and Norway had joined t
sponsors.
8. At its December meeting, the Council would adopt a
strategic plan which would focus on the mission and guiding



A/C.2/53/SR.26

principles of the University, its strategic directions, academic  structures currently consisted of close to 100 members. To
goals and objectives and means of implementation. insure greater cost-effectiveness, those structures should be
Specifically, UNU should continue to serve as a catalyst for reviewed and streamlined.

fundamental research and reflection on policy issuebdtil 14. In the area of institutional development, JIU had

actasa reservorr of |dea_s for the_Umted_ N{iﬂo_ns SyStem_al%%ommended that the role of the University Centre in Tokyo
also strengthen its capacity-building activities in developin ould be revitalized, both in its “think- tank” function and

coun_trllgs. The plant woulﬂ pay sz:emﬂc atte?t;Jon to_suh management oversight of the UNU system as a whole. At
crucial 1ssues as strengihening he support base in same time, it should develop innovative methods of

countries through activiFies ta_rgeteq at y_o_uth, and deveIOpiEgpacity—building and strengthening of the research and
new forms of cooperatlon_wnh universities an_d researc_he[rrsdining centres and programmes in developing countries. In
arognd the world and with other partners in the Un'teﬁwat context, the possibility of linked funding could be
Nations system. explored with potential donors.

9. Toachieve that vision, the University must obtain thf5
support of all Member States. He expressed appreciatio
the major stakeholders, particularly the host countries, Jap

. As the Secretary-General had rightly observed, the
Qential of the United Nations University remained largely

X ) Rderutilized by the United Nations community. Interaction
Finland, the Netherlands, China, Portugal, Macao, Venezue

Jordan. Gh Zambi d lceland. | : ?d collaboration on programme matters between the
ordan, Ghana, Zambia and lceland. It must nOtonyremal%iversityandtheother organizations of the United Nations

relevant to Member States and donor Governments, but mg%tem should be systematized yger alia, utilizing the
also retain its credibility in the academic world, and therefor achinery of the Administrative Committee ’on Coordination

It must con.t|hn.uehtof operatekW|ft'h achademuf”:reedom a CC) in a more systematic manner and strengthening the
autonomy within the framework of its charter. The expertis niversity’s dissemination activities within the United

knoyvledge and wisdom ,Of the membgrs of its Council arNations system, particularly with regard to intergovernmental
advisory boards constituted a major resource to t %Iicy and normative processes

University, and as such, those bodies should be seen not as
a burden but as an asset. 16. The most important source of financing for the

niversity was the Endowment Fund, whose original target
d been US$ 500 million. In fact, contributions to the

were a}/\(?re ogl_thetlwork Ogl#]\lu’ th.ei.pmye evaluatior)tof Endowment Fund thus far amounted to less than half that
many Of IS publications and the positive response to 1ts n ount; furthermore, such contributions were generally

initiatives. The Secretary-General’s reform proposals pos ; o,

new challenges and opportuniies, and he looked forwardgg e o3, 4onOrS 0r partioular Research and Training

the promising oppo_rtumﬂe; presented by cooperation W'f e coherence of United Nations University operations, JIU

the Strategic Planning Unit. recommended a review of the current situation at an

11. Now, more than ever, there was need for integrative, appropriate time. In the meantime, potential donors to the
multidisciplinary and multiculturaldng-term thinking. As an  University might consider the “linked” funding arrangement
international community of scholars and a bridge between the outlined in Recommendation 10 (b), whereby a percentage
world of learning and the trustees of the community of of contributions to a University entity in a developed country
nations, the University had a privileged role to play in the would be provided to another University entity in the
process. developing countries (A/332, para. 89). |In

12. Mr.Kuyama (Joint Inspection Unit (JIU)), introducing Recommer!dation 19 (©), ‘]!U proposeq thgt the ppiversity

the report of the Joint Inspection Unit (A/53/392), said that10U!d be included in the list of organizations eligible for

the inspectors had focused mainly on issues of governanB@rticipation in the annual United Nations Pledging

Their recommendations were grouped into four clusterSonference.

university governance, institutional development, programme 17. Under Recommendation 11, JIU recommended that the
planning and implementation and financing and management. Secretary-General should facilitate the implementation of
mmon premises and services for the United Nations system

10. Hehadbeen encouraged by the number of people

13. With regard to university governance, the inspectoFQ
considered that the composition of the UNU Council shouft Tokyo.

be reviewed with a view to reflecting more fully the diversity 18. He was pleased to note that the Secretary-General
of its stakeholders and thus enhancing the practical relevance endorsed most of the JIU recommendations and did not
of its activities to problems of global concern. Its governing entirely reject those to which he did not give his full support



A/C.2/53/SR.26

but rather recommended approaching them “with some United Nations and its Member States. While the research
caution” (A/53/392/Add.1, para. 12). He expressed the hopendacted by the Universityheuld seek to achieve the

that the General Assembly would adopt a resolution on the highest standards of academic excellence, it should also be
United Nations University containing most of the JIU concrete, practical and policy-oriented and seek to cover
recommendations or at least reflecting their thrust. In that major topics of relevance to Member States, such as the
context, he pointed out that Recommendations 1, 10 (c) and application of science to development.

7 (d) required direct action by the General Assembly. 22. His Government also attached great importance to

19. Mr. Perez-Segnini(Venezuela) commended the United  strengthening capacity-building through training and it
Nations University for its work and its contributions to the welcomed the University’'s intent to implement new and
deliberations of the Second Committee on a number of items, innovative approaches to capacity-bnitdinigg short-

including financing for development. Venezuela had been one term courses, curriculum development, fellowships and
of the main contributors to the University’'s Endowment Fund  faculty exchange. In that context, greater reliance should be
and Caracas was the headquarters for its Programme for placed on the utilization of national expertise and the focus
Biotechnology in Latin America and the Caribbean of the programmes should be more demand driven in order
(BIOLAC), which was having a growing impact in the region.  to fully meet developing country needs and requirements.
The University could serve as a valuable tool and a brid Mr. Ingolfsson (Iceland) said that, for 20 years, the

between.th(.e L}mted N"ﬁ‘“‘?”s and the |nte-rnat|ona! UNIVersily, andic National Energy Authority and the United Nations
commun|ty|n its four priority areas of work: the env"onmentUniversity had conducted a Geothermal Training Programme
science and Itechnlglogy, devglopmeknt and ﬁpea}cel 3H%celand, which had offered specialized courses and on-the-
Qovefn,megts- t could carry out its V}’Orr] rSogtg Nect!ve y IIob training to more than 200 scientists and civil engineers

It remained an autonomous organ of the United Nations. ., , energy agencies and research organizations from 35

20. Ms. Dong Guilan (China), noting that her Government developing countries. The programme was aimed at capacity-
attached importance to the University’s research and training  building for national execution and building awareness of the
programmes, said that, as a result of rapid advances in science importance of utilizing clean and renewable sources of

and technology and increased global economic integration, energy.

it was imperative to have a new perspective and an innovatiyg Encouraged by the success of that programme, his

way of working to put plans into practice. Therefore, it Wag overnment had recently launched a Fisheries Trair’1ing

necessary for the University to readjust its focus and impro\@rogramme in cooperation with the University. Thus far

its method of work. Her delegation was pleased to see that gfrticipants from the Gambia, Mozambique and Uganda ha;d
c

University had mad-e- great gfforts recently t(.) IMProve % ceived training in various aspects of the fishing industry,
management and efficiency. Since the University had Ilmlteiﬁ

p 21 and oth " t establish q gluding policy and planning, marine and inland waters
inancial and other resources, It must establish an order @k, ..o assessment and monitoring, company management,
priority. It should pay greater attention to needs in the ar

. ) processing of fish products and marketing. The
of environment and development, make its research aj) uguration of the programme had coincided with the

training programmes more problem oriented and praCtiC?}J‘rternational Year of the Ocean. He hoped that it would

and allocate its resources in a more rational mann%roJItribute to food security in the world

Moreover, measures should be taken to ensure timely an _
extensive dissemination of research findings. 25. Mr.Rahmanov (Turkmenistan) welcomed the report

5 Mr. Mahtab (Indi id that hi h (ngIU and the note of the Secretary-General. His delegation
.l' .Mahtab (India) said that |s§overpment attached oo with the Secretary-General’'s recommendation on the
importance to the research and capacity-building work of the .y« 0 anhance the potential of the United Nations
United Nations University and had contributed generously@niversity’ which was currently underutilized. It also

its Endowment Funq and to 'ts, Worl_d !nstltute forsupported his view that the University’'s mandate should
Development Economics Research in Helsinki,

: ; Flnland. HiStend beyond its role of a think-tank and also include
delegation welcomed the Rector’'s observations on t%i

i P being develooed within th ) ) omotion of the growth of academic and scientific
S_trgteglc an now being developed wit |nt_ e University ang, mnities everywhere, particularly in the developing
his intent to undertake research and capacity-

building W'thg?)untries. The scientific and academic institutions of Member

two main programme areas: peace and governance, @gtes should increase their participation in the work of the

environment and sustainable development. It also appredafﬂqversitywith a view to organizing joint research projects,
the need to carry out long-term fundamental research cial panel discussions, round tables and various training

reflection on pressing global problems of concern to th

r



A/C.2/53/SR.26

programmes, including in the fields of solar energy and in that regard. In that connection, the reports on the
desertification control. University should have provided specific information on the

26. His delegation believed that the University Shouluaumber and nationality of researchers who had received

maintain its simple governance structure and its integrity afigning.

independence as an academic institution. He noted thatthe 31. The University's areas of focus, including the economic
most recent instances of the University's cooperation with aspects of development, new technology, computer
organizations of the United Nations system — the joint technology, advanced studies, natural resources in Africa,
preparation with the United Nations Educational, Scientific biotechnology and water, environment and sanitation, were
and Cultural Organization (UNESCO) of the World ofgreatinterest, particularly to the developing countries. Its
Conference on Higher Education and of a series with the undertakingsnésg to the goals it had established in its
United Nations Institute for Training and Research medium-term perspective for the A&e&d-2001. His
(UNITAR) on sustainable development in practice had been delegation noted, however, that the University’'s activities
extremely useful to the delegations in attendance. continued to be located mainly in the industralizeks,

fgyen those activities that were of greater interest to the

27. Turning to his own experience he said that earlier in t ) ; X N
year, he had been awarded a full scholarship to participateqﬁvemp'ng countries. It hoped that the University's centres

the University's Second Leadership Programme at i@wd programmes would be redistributed _to_ inclu_de the
International Leadership Academy in Amman, Jordan. THRQuNtries qfthe S_OUth' In _that (_:onnectlon, Tunisia, Wh'Ch_ had
programme had featured direct interaction betwed§st experience in Qesertlflcatlon control and had established
participants and world leaders, including such renowndyl Institute _Of Arid Lan_c!s, was prepared t_o hQSt a new
politicians and academicians as Mr. Shimon Peres, fom{éarsearch unit on desertification and the cultivation of arid
Prime Minister of Israel, and Mr. Oscar Arias, formerla”ds and the preservation of their ecosystems. The proposed

President of Costa Rica, who had been awarded the Nofg[tre would have a tremendous regional impact, since the
Peace Prize. It had also included a study tour to Israel, gican countries and the coun_tr_ies_of the Middle East were
Palestinian territories and Egypt and a dialogue with thSéaverely threatened by desertification.

Israeli Parliament, the Palestinian Authority, the Arab League 34@r. Nishigahiro (Japan), noting that the University

and the Peres Peace Centre. At the dawn of the new had long been in need of thoroughgoing reform, welcomed
millennium, the University's Leadership Programme had the report of the Joint Inspection Unit (A/53/392). His
prepared its participants for a new culture of peace. delegation had these suggestions for revitalizing the work of

28. As ayoung diplomat from a newly independent natiome U_nivgrsity. Firstly, the basic policies underpinning the
he had benefited tremendously from the experience andq{gamzatlo_nal structure of the entire system should be more
wished to express his gratitude to the people and Governmgﬁa”y defined. _SeCF’”,d'y'_ much more should be done to
of Jordan and to thank all donor countries, particularly Japdﬂ,crease the University's visibility in the world at large. He

for their commitment to the University. He urged all MembePraised the efforts of its Council and its Rector to remedy the
States to provide all possible support to the University. situation, adding that efforts to formulate a consistent and
" unified publications policy must be intensified. Thirdly,

29. Mr. Azaiez (Tunisia) praised the University's gjthough the number afonors had nominally increased, the
successful balance of research and training activitidd®7 more recent contributions were earmarked for specific
and its role in capacity-building. His delegation welcomegyyrposes. He therefore urged the University to streamline its
in particular, the University's activities aimed at building the,gministrative expenses and to step up its efforts to secure
capacities of academic institutions in developing countriggancing, particularly for its Endowment Fund.

through,inter alia, a student training programme, seminars , , , )
scientific gatherings and specific projects. Nonetheless, g Japan would continue to actively support the University.

scope of those activities was not yet proportional to tHat the same time, it hoped that reforms in the University
tremendous needs of developing countries in that regardyvould be introduced on the basis of the recommendations of

the JIU report, the United Nations University third medium-
30. His country, which had an excellent education systefiarm perspective and the University-wide strategic plan
sought to develop cooperation with the major scientific anglipmitted by its Rector to the Council at its forty-fourth
technical research centres in the world. It therefore hopeddgssion. His delegation would submit a draft resolution on the
see the strengthening of the post-graduate training capacifififited Nations University for consideration by the Second

of the United Nations University, in order to enable it tqcommittee, which it hoped would be adopted by consensus.
respond to the growing demands of the developing countries



A/C.2/53/SR.26

34. Mr.Chouinard (Canada) reaffirmed his Government’s including the series of studies on the situation in Haiti from
support for the activities of the United Nations Universityl986 to 1996. The Universitytil needed to work in order
The International Network on Water, Environment and Health  to enhance its prestige and diversify its capacities in order to
(INWEH) had been established in Canada in 1996. Located address the concerns of pmaopdetae world on the eve
at McMaster University in Ontario, INWEH offered capacity- of the third millennium. Its publication policy should also take
building programmes tailored to the needs of developing more account of the other working languages of the United
countries. The Network was comprised of water pollution and Nations so that the studigsced might reach larger
management experts, non-governmental organizations, audiences. Effective work by the University was not possible
academic institutions, representatives of the United Nations unless Governments and the bodies of the United Nations
and other multilateral bodies and the private sector. It system concerned contributed to its budget. Member States
cooperated closely with the United Nations and the United should therefore honour their commitment to contribute to the
Nations University systems and with various specialized University's Endowment Fund in order to finanaertimg r
agencies, the Commission on Sustainable Development and of the units of the United Nations University rather than to
the World Bank. It specialized in identifying appropriate create new centres that were merely linked to it. His
science and technology for meeting water needs and assisting delegatigratulated the University on its initiative to
environmental industries in developing countries with maintain cooperation with UNITAR. Such cooperation, in
emphasis on capacity-building. line with General Assembly resolution 52/206, was an
35. Initially, priority was being given to projects in I_atinimp_ortar_wt_stage in the ration_al d_ivis_ion of labour l_Jetween_ the
America, the Middle East and Africa. Its first revenueMain training and re_search institutions ofthe Uplted Natlgns
stem. His delegation encouraged the University to continue

generating project had been launched in Mexico; in Centra

America and the Caribbean, it planned to carry out a projeF@F process of reform already under way in order to streamline

on coastal marine ecosystems and coastal development. It Hgd_management_ sys_,tems and mech_an,lsms. That would
begun collaborating with the Pan American Healtf?c'“tate the coordination of the University’s operations and

Organization to deal with the environmental impacts cWould lead to a better allocation of its financial resources.

mining. It also planned to install a solar-powered groundwater  38r. Talbot (Guyana) expressed support for the work
pumping system in the Sahel region of West Africa, to done by the University. His delegation had taken note with
provide assistance to the National Centre for Environmental appreciation of the efforts being made by the University to
Health Activities in Jordan and to assess the potential impact implement General Assembly resolution 51/187 and wished
of water-borne contaminants on human consumption of fish  to encourage the University to continue its activities in the
and seafood in the Arabian Gulf/Abu Dhabi coastal zone. service of the United Nations.

36. Mr. Al-Hadid (Jordan) said that his country was proud 39Mr. van Ginkel (Rector of the United Nations

that its capital, Amman, had been chosen as the location for  University) said that many of the reforms were already being
the International Leadership Academy, pursuant to a undertaken by the University, for it was realliteonon
resolution adopted in Decemb&894 by the @uncil of the improving its functioning and to being of greater service to
United Nations University. The Academy had been developing countries and the United Nations system as a
established with a view to providing training for future whole. The University’s role was threefold: to act as a think
leaders, and providing them with the knowledge, skills and tank focusing on fundamental and integrated research; as an
strategies required to deal with the issues they would organ that focused on capacity-building and; as an action-
encounter. It was also intended to be a centre for the exchange oriented organ, focusing essentially on firdd. dotiliat

of information and experience. In the few years it had been connection, the University was currently working on
in operation, the Academy had arranged a variety of activities becoming more active in the field of combating
and had offered participants the opportunity to benefit from desertification.

the experience of prominent world statesmen and exchange

views on many current global issues. The Academy was thgenda item 97: Permanent sovereignty of the

first institution of its type in the Middle East, and hisPalestinian people in the occupied Palestinian

delegation therefore urged the international community territory, including Jerusalem, and of the Arab

provide it with every support. population in the occupied Syrian Golan over their

37. Mr.Murat (Haiti) said that his delegation particularly@tural resources(A/53/72—E/1998/156,
welcomed the efforts of the University in exploring factordV/53/95-5/1998/311, A/53/163-E/1998/79)
that might explain national and international problems,



A/C.2/53/SR.26

40. Ms. Al-Bassam(Chief, Regional Commissions New other natural resources and the violation of rights of the
York Office), introducing the report contained in document  Palestinian people and the population of the occupied Syrian
A/53/163-E/1998/79 said that during the period covered by  Golan over those resourcalbe@aldbraeli practices had,

the report, the stalled peace process, Israeli occupation over the long years of occupation, crippled the economic,
policies and closure of the occupied territories had aggravated social and ecological environment of the occupied territories.
the living conditions of the Palestinian people in the occupied Israeli settlement in the occupied Syrian Golan and the
territory and the Arab population of the occupied Syrian occupied Palestinian territories, including Jerusalem,
Golan. The second half of 1997 had withessed an explosion reflected the strategic aims ofititgt, evhich were to

in building construction throughout the occupied territories expropriate land and water and to drive out the Arab
to the extreme detriment of the Palestinian people. Limited inhabitants of that territory, using various spurious security
access to water, as a result of Israeli policies, remained the and ideological pretexts.

greatest obstace to Palestinian agriculiural develobmeRk.  within days of the six-day war in 1967, the Israelis had
oreover, Israet Industrial concerns in the occupied Yeg gun work on the first settlement in the occupied Syrian

Bank had profited from the lack of enforcement by the Isra olan, in implementation of their policy to separate the Golan

authorities of environmental regulations on soil, air and Watﬁ,rom its mother country, Syria, and the Knesset decision to
quality. ' '

impose its laws, jurisdiction and administration in that

41. Palestinians had traditionally made up the bulk of the territory. Notwithstanding Security Council resolution 497
work force engaged in the construction and daily maintenance (1981), which stated that the Israeli decision was null and
of settlements throughout the occupied territories. The void and without international legal effect, the Israelis had
unemployment situation in the West Bank and Gaza Strip continued to implement their policy and, on 23 July 1997, the
remained critical, in particular owing to closures and Knessethad passed, in first reading, a proposal to complete
increased reliance of Israel on expatriate workers from the annexation of the Golan. The Israelis had not only taken
outside the region. Moreover, during the period under review, possession of 96 per cent of the territory of the occupied
the prevailing economic environment in the West Bank and  Syrian Golan and destroyed 244 towns and villages, driving
the Gaza Strip had inhibited investment and growth, owing out their inhabitants to replace them with Israeli settlers, but
to the continued ambiguity of the legal and political situation.  were currently encircling the five remaining Syrian villages

42.  With respect to the Syrian Golan, the Arab populatio‘ﬁith a view to seizing the remainder of the land on pretexts

faced further deterioration in its living conditions owing thh'Ch mpluded the need for land on Wh'Ch to bl_“ld m_|I|tary
Israeli settlements, restrictions on employment oppaties installations, settlements or roads. Side by side with that
’ olicy went the occupying power’s water policy, which had

and education, as well as to the Israeli taxation polic% ) ; ) o . .
Employment opportunities for the Syrian Arab population i e aim of preventing Syrian citizens in the occupied Golan

the Golan Heights were extremely limited, since thfom using their own water resources and striking a body

movement of the Arab population between the Golan and tHL?W at their economic actl_tles, the foremost (_)f which was
Syrian Arab Republic remained very restricted. Furthermor@?”cu"ure' At_ the same time, Israel was using those water
those workers had no access to social benefits and hedffoUrces for its settlements.

insurance. The Arab population living in the Golan were 45. The report also reflected the reality of Israeli occupation
subjected to prohibitive levels of taxation. As with previous in Jerusalem and the other occupied Palestinian territories.
reports on the subject, the information contained in the Israelwas continuing its settlement drive, expropriating land
current report was based on various sources, primarily from and expanding existing settlements with a view to changing
the Israeli and Palestinian press. the legal and demographic nature of occupied Jerusalem. The
43. Mr. Aala (Syrian Arab Republic), recalling that "ePort also painted a tragic picture of the conditions in which

General Assembly resolution 52/207 had reaffirmed tﬁge Palestinia_n people were forced to Iive,_being deprived of
inalienable rights of the Palestinian people and the populatiHHa use of t_h(_e|_r own water resources, of which 80 per cent had

of the occupied Syrian Golan over their natural resourcéé‘?en requisitioned by Israel.

including land and water, said that the report before the 46. In his statement to the Committee under agenda item
Committee detailed the difficulties facing the Palestinian 94, the Israeli delegate had said that his country was
people and the population of the occupied Syrian Golanasa extremely advanced in many fields of environmental
result of Israeli policies and practices since they had first development, and that it was making an effective contribution
occupied Arab territories in 1967. Those practices included to regional and international vemdeato combat

the expansion of settlements, expropriation of land, water and  desertification. He had apparetidg oonmake any



A/C.2/53/SR.26

reference to Israel’s contribution to the desertification of the  between the rightful owners of the territories and the Israeli
agricultural land owned by Arab citizens in occupied Arab settlers and created situations which contravened all
territories by depriving those citizens of their water resources, international laws and norms. As noted in paragraph 22 of the
to which the international community had stated they had an  report, in 1987, when settlers were barely 10 per cent of the
inalienable right. Palestinian population in the West Bank, Palestinian

47. Mr. Fahmy (Egypt) said that the report before theconsumption of yvater totalled 115 c_ubic cc_entimetres while
Committee provided detailed information reflecting thelitga Sttler consumption equalled 97 cubic centimetres. Areport
of the worsening living conditions of the peoples in th@Y Peace Now noted that the Jewish settlers’ per capita
occupied territories. Those conditions were a result Jf'9ated areas were 7 and 13 times larger than the areas
tyrannical Israeli practices intended to gain control over ﬂ%corded to the Palest|n_|ans for irrigation in the Gaza Strip
natural resources of the occupied territories and to deny tﬂ@d West Bank, respectively.
occupants of those territories their natural right to exercise 52. Numerous General Assembly and Security Council
sovereignty over those resources and realize their legitimate  resolutionsridahtned categorically the measures taken
aspirations for development. by Israel with regard to settlements, and their negative social
&nd economic impact sinde967 on the Palestinian people
merely reflect the fact of occupation, but represented'%the occgpled I_Dalest|n|an territory, _|nclud|n_g Jerusalem, and
Arab inhabitants of the occupied Syrian Golan. Those

carefully planned strategy to expropriate those territories a X A =y
their natural resources and to expel their owners in Orderrt%solutlons had also reaffirmed the applicability ofthe Geneva

benefit an occupying minority. As noted in paragraph 4 of th%_onvention Relative to the Protection of Glia_n Persons_ in
report, by the end of 1998, more thas0,000 Israelis would Time of War, of 12 Augus1949, to the occupied Palestinian

be living in over 200 communities established sin€67 in territory, including Jerusalem, and other Arab territories

the West Bank, East Jerusalem, the Gaza Strip and the Go?&ﬁUpied by Israel since 1967. Securitgum_cil resolution
Heights. 465 (1980), had mentioned the need to consider measures for

) ) ‘the impartial protection of private and public land and
49. The report also made it clear that the Israeli OCCUPat'EF‘operty and water resources.
e

was using the Israeli settlements as a tool for what could h i . dacli h d
called environmental terrorism directed against th%3' The Israeli practices created a climate that promote

inhabitants of those territories. The Israeli Government hg&nfrontaﬂon between Palestinians and the settlers and

deliberately located highly polluting industrial iéities in the _compl?cated the se_curity situation,_ demonstrati_ng the
pconsistency of Israeli Government policy of demanding that

occupied territories, ignoring basic international v should b £ th e £ th
environmental guidelines. According to paragraph 27, thep&CUrty shou e one of the 1op priorities of the peace

were 45 enterprises operating in the industrial park of Burkd{Ocess, while a,t the same tlme puttlng. in place practlges
adjacent to the settlement of Ariel. The owners of thos}goductlve oftension, confrontation and violence not only in
factories escaped the tighter rules on health and tH},\e occupied territories but in the whole Middle East.

environment inside Israel itself to work in the West Bank 54. Egypt had followed with great interest the recent
where they got tax breaks. In addition to Burkan, Palestinians  negotiations at Wye River which had led to the conclusion of
had complained about the operation of industrial facilities at  an interim agreement on 23 Ot3&8erand hoped that

Ariel, Karne Shomron, Kiryat Arba and Adumim. implementation of that agreement would put the peace

50. The restrictions placed by Israel on the right tBrocess baf:k on tra'ck, in or.der to ensure a j,USt, and
education of the Arab inhabitants of the occupied SyrigfPMPrehensive peace in the region based on the principle of
Golan amounted to the theft of the future of wholéand for peace, the appl'lcatK.Jn ofmternaﬂonahtggacy and .
generations, and a violation of their natural right to improvESPECt for the sovereign rights of the Palestinian people in
living standards. According to paragraph 60 of the reportt‘e occupled Ralestlnlan terrltory, mcluqlmg Jerusalem, aqd
improvement of living conditions were further aggravateHje Arab inhabitants of the occupied Syrian Golan over their

owing to restrictions on expanding educational facilitiedatural resources.
facilitation of education in the Syrian Arab Republic and 55Vr. Al-Bader (Qatar) said that the information
access to education in Israeli colleges. contained in document &53HE/1998/79 made clear just

51. The economic strangulation imposed by Israeli pOliCi(gé)W far Isrzell pohqes n j[he ?ccupled.Ara.b ttlarcr;.tone;
severely restricted the economic development choices of t(ﬁ(géngzvene gery |.ntern|at|.ona cr?nventloq, mch(Ju.mg the
peoples living under occupation. A racist policydifferentiateilj 49 Geneva @nvention relative to the Protection of @ian

48. Israeli practices in the occupied territories did n



A/C.2/53/SR.26

Persons in Time of War. It was particularly regrettable that
Israeli expropriation of Palestinian territory, destruction of
homes and expulsion of defenceless Palestinian civilians

continued despite the peace process that had begun with the

using “the West Bank” and “Gaza Strip” to denote such

occupied territory. On occasion, it used the expression

“territories”. As had already been pointed out to the Economic
and SoriallGhat was not the teguage used in United

Madrid Conference in 1991. Israel continued to build new Nations resolutions. The {fteemmas consistent in using

settlements in order to impose the status quo, while calling
on the other party to negotiate. It was racing against time to
bring Jewish settlers from all over the world and place them
in settlements on occupied Arab territory in an attempt to
change the demographic composition of the towns in thots)
territories and ensure that settlers outnumbered the Ar@%
inhabitants.

56. Recalling that General Assembly resolution 52/207 had,
inter alia, reaffirmed the inalienable rights of the Palestinian
people and the population of the occupied Syrian Golan over
their natural resources, including land and water and called
upon Israel, the occupying Power, not to exploit, to cause loss
or depletion of or to endanger the natural resources in the
occupied Palestinian territory, he said that his delegation had
frequently condemned the tyrannical measures taken by Israel
against the Palestinian and Syrian people in occupied Arab
territories, considering such measures clear and blatant
violations of international conventions and United Nations
resolutions. His delegation urged the Israeli Government to
halt its inhumane practices. The Palestinian people had a
history deeply rooted in its land, and the United Nations must
not rest until their rights had been restored.

vernments’
condemnation of the entire international community and

the term “occupied Palestinian territory, including

Jerusalem”, and all relevant United Nations resolutions
affirmed the unity and territorial integrity of the occupied

Palestinian territory.

The report exposed the magnitude of successive Israeli
settlement drive, regardless of the

numerous United Nations resolutions, and of theilgggplicab

of the Geneva Convention relative to the Protection of

Civilian Persons in Time of War, of 12 AQgasto the

occupied Palestinian territory, including Jerusalem, and other
Arab territories occupied by Israel since 1967. It stated that
by the end of 1998, more than 350,000 Israelis would be
living in over 200 communities establishé@&ihirethe

West Bank, East Jerusalem, the Gaza Strip and the Golan
Heights. The number of Palestinian homes demolished by the
Israel defence forces in area C, had been 233 in 1997 alone

and 290 from January 1997 to March 1998. A report prepared

by the Israeli Information Centre for Human Rights in the
Occupied Territories (B'Tselem) had indicated that 322
orders for the demolition of Palestinian homes in East

Jerusalem had been issued, and that more than 1,000 homes

57. Mr. Jilani (Observer for Palestine) said that despitgad been scheduled for demolition by the current Israeli

the close link between the economic and social repercussi

of the Israeli occupation on the living conditions of thd’
Palestinian people in the occupied Palestinian territory,
including Jerusalem, and of the Arab population in th 0

Qvernment. The Government continued to expropriate
alestinian land in order to build new and expand existing
ttlements and construct bypasses.
mmandeer and divert to Israel itself and the settlements

It continued to

occupied Syrian Golan, and the permanent sovereignty of tW@t_er from the occupied Palestinian territory and the occupied

same peoples over their natural resources, General Asse
resolution 52/207 had focused primarily on the principle i
permanent sovereignty over natural resources and on

an Golan: some 60 per cent of total Israeli consumption
as fed from sources in those territories. There was a huge
fﬂsécrepancy between the amount of water used by Israelis and

destructive policies of Israel, the occupying Power, witWe amount used by Palestinians: Israel commandeered 80 per

regard to those natural resources.
58.

cent of the water resources of the West Bank.

The report contained in documentA/53/163—E/1998/%" A further serious development referred to in many

set forth significant facts and figures clearly reflecting Israel'EPOrts over the decades of occupation and verified by the

continued pursuit of its settlement policies and the destructi
effects of those policies on the economic and so@atitions

of the Palestinian people in occupied Palestinian territorép
including Jerusalem, and in the occupied Syrian Golan. T =
report was identical to the one which had been submitted
the Economic and Social Council. He hoped that two separé&e
reports would be submitted in future.

59. The report referred to East Jerusalem as if it wep@'

{?@Iestinian Ministry of the Environment was that Israel was
dumping toxic and other waste in Palestinian areas. Between
and 80 tons of such waste had been found in the Qalqilia
gion, near the area’s sole water source. The disposal by
Israel of such waste in Palestinian towns and villages was one
its most serious abuses of the natural resources of
Palestine.

The continuation of the aforementioned Israeli policies

separate from the remainder of occupied Palestinian territofy!d Practices was a clear expression of the ideology that
almed to increase expansion in the occupied Palestinian



A/C.2/53/SR.26

territory, including Jerusalem. The Israeli Government gave 66. Israel applied a double standard with regard to the
the illegal settlements every encouragement while destroying  environment and the application of environmental and health
Palestinian homes, withdrawing the identity cards of the measures, depending upon whether they were to be applied
Palestinian inhabitants of Jerusalem, commandeering the inlsraelitself or in the occupied territory. Israeli factories in
natural resources of the occupied territory for the use of the occupied territory contravened health and environmental
settlements and placing every possible obstacle in the path regulations, and increasing numbers of factories were being
of Palestinian national economic development. relocated to that territory in order to evade the restrictions

63. He hoped that the Wye River agreement would IorO\i}(‘gposed upon them in Israel itself. A number of studies had
aturning point, and that all the steps agreed upon would B‘gowln the dﬁleterlqus effectsftr;]at had on the health of the
implemented at the proper time, in order to conclude tHEople and the environment of the occupied territory.

interim stage and begin final status negotiations, which would 67. Economic statistics showed that the standard of living
result in the establishment of an independent Palestinian state  ofthe Palestinian community had fallen as a result of Israeli
with Jerusalem as its capital. policies and the suppression of the Palestinian economy. The

64. Mr.Al-Hadid (Jordan) said that his delegation Wisheésraeli_b(_)rders were frequently closeq,_entaili_ng Io_sses t_o the

to commend the endeavours that had produced the rep%ia{estl_man economy c_)f some $10 million daily. With a view _
contained in document A/53/163—E/1998/79. The currefft Making the Palestinian economy depen_dentupon the Israeli
Israeli Government was continuing to implement the policieesconomY’ Israel ?ISO ma_de it difficult for _'t to trade with the

of all the Governments which had preceded it, building neffFonomies of neighbouring Arab countries.

settlements and expanding existing ones in order to impose 68. Israel was continuing to increase the number of
the status quo and change the demographic composition dflensents and settlers in the occupied Syrian Golan, and to

the occupied Arab territories in defiance of General Assembly restrict the inhabitants’ employment opportunities. Syrian
and Security Council resolutions and the will of the workershad no access to social benefits or health insurance
international community. He cited Security Council resolution and were subjected to prohibitive levels of taxation, including
446 (1979) which had determined that the policy and tax on income, health services, docalils, land and
practices of Israel in establishing settlements had no ledalusing ownership and use of water resources. Such measures
validity and constituted a serious obstruction to achievinga had systematically deterred the Arab population from
comprehensive, just and lasting peace in the Middle East, and investing in agricultural or small-scale industrial development
Security Council resolution 465.080), which called upon and had incited many of them to seek wage labour
Israel to halt its settlement activity and dismantle existing employment.

settlements. 69. Over the years, his country had made every endeavour

65. Due to Israeli settlement policy, the amount of land to achieve a lasting and comprehensive peace in the Middle
available to the Palestinian people for agriculture on the West East and ensure that the people of the region enjoyed
Bank and Gaza Strip had been severely restricted; as a result, development and stability in place of the violence and
the contribution to GDP of agriculture was currently less than instability from which they had suffered for so long. Even

15 per cent, and there had been a concomitant reduction in  after it had regained its territory and water resources pursuant
the number of Palestinians working in the agricultural sector. to the agreement signed with Israel in 1994, Jordan had
Available water resources were largely allocated to Israeli  continued to work for the legitimate rights of the Palestinian
settler communities: ser consumption was approximately people. Hisiatry considered development angigge to be

10 times greater than Palestinian consumption. Many studies inseparable, and the right to development to be a basic human
had shown that increased Israeli water consumption since right. Peace could not flourish in the shadow of oppression,
1967 had largely been supplied by the water resources ofthe  poverty and suffering. Economic security was therefore the
West Bank and upper Jordan River. Israel was using ground only effective guarantee of peace.

water resources at a rate whereby they could never bg o ;1ged the international community to increase its

naturally replenished. In addition it was depriving the, . ia) assistance to all sectors of the Palestinian economy
Palestinian community of water resources: the latter’s use d alleviate the suffering of the Palestinian people. His

watelr h".’ld ;]ncrease_d dby °T"y 20 plilr cent smc? 1967. TBglegation renewed its appeal to the Government of Israel to
peoplesin t leocm:cple tgrrltlory could use W"?‘te(; or lpersorm{lt expropriation of territory, the building or expansion of
purposes only, notor agricuiture or economic deve c)pme@ettlements and to honour the undertakings it had made in the

framework of bilateral agreements, including the recent Wye

10



A/C.2/53/SR.26

River Memorandum, which King Hussein had played a padonors and with the Palestinian authims, had developed a

in concluding. The peace process must be put back on track, programme of technical assistance covering various areas
and Israeli practices reviewed in order to bring peace to the ranging from employment policies and support to the private
region as quickly as possible. sector and small enterprise to the establishment of a sound

71. Mr. Azaiez (Tunisia) said that the item should remair?tat'snca' system, particularly in the areas of employment and

on the agenda as long as Israel continued its occupation, &HgPUr- Within that framework, studies had evaluated the

as long as peoples were denied their civil and political righR©P€ for generating more employment in areas such as
guaranteed under the Universal Declaration of Human Righficulture, small industries and exports. On the basis of
The expropriation of land, the demolition of buildings and thEESearch in those fields, ILO had lent its support to an
diversion of water resources by Israel was a denial mternatlonal Co_nference on I_Employmentm Palestine, which
fundamental rights. The report noted, among other things, tﬁ}cﬁd been held in Ramallah in May.

almost the entire increase in Israeli water use since 1967 76. There could be no lasting improvement in the situation
derived from the waters of the West Bank and the upper of workers of the Palestinian and other Arab occupied
Jordan River. Meanwhile, the Palestinians were forced to territories without economic development accompanied by
leave what little land they had fallow because of a lack of employment, training for workers and managerial staff,
water and the fact that they were banned from drilling wells.  strengthening of employers’ and workers’ organizations and

72. The situation was hardly any better in the occupieraore efficient social institutions.

Syrian Golan. The Arab population faced restrictions on  7Fir. Elron (Israel) said that, it was regrettable that the
employment opportunities and education and was heavily Qtiemshould be discussing the current topic which was,
taxed by the occupying authorities. That combination of at best, superfluous to the Committee’s work. Moreover, it
restrictive policies had discouraged the Arab population from was already covered extensively by the Israel-Palestinian
investing in agriculture and small-scale industries and forced interim agreement signed on 28 Sep89BbAnd it was

many of its members to give up agriculture altogether. again included in the Wye River Memorandum, which
Frequent Israeli closures had been a major factor behind the stipulated that both sides reaffirmed their commitment to
18 per cent drop in gross national product (GNP) in the West  actively promote economic development and cooperation.
Bank and Gaza Strip and the 35 per centdrop in per capita Those were the appropriate forums for such issues.

GNP between 1992 and 1996. In #duh, the gross domestic 78

product (GDP) ha}d declined conmdergbly from 5.5 per Cef?\tternational community which meant, first and foremost,

in 1996 to an estimated 1.2 per centin 1997. upholding the principle of direct negotiations. It also meant

73. For all the foregoing reasons, his delegation requested creating an atmosphere conducive to achieving progress in
the General Assembly to continue its consideration of that the negotiations, not a climate of political confrontation. In
item at its next session. A report should be submitted to the particular, it called for the adoption of resolutions that
Assembly thereon. reflected the positive developments in the process and the

74. Mr. Miller (International Labour Organization) said'0pe for a better future in the Middle East.

that employment was central to sustainable development 79. Unfortunately, the current debate contributed nothing
within the occupied territories. The continued high level of at all to the cooperative spirit of the peace process. On the
unemployment and the limited proportion of wage jobs that contrary, by raising issues that sought to predetermine the
were stable or otherwise satisfying, raised the challenge of outcome of permanent status negotiations, the report before
job creation. Planned multilateral investment programmes in  the Gue®ran counter to the driving principle of the
infrastructure were expected to create some 15,000 jobs a whole process, namely, that Israel and the Palestinians must
year. However, those new jobs would not be sufficient to meet resolve those issues directly.

the needs of the unemployed as well as of new gntrants to the meeting rose at 6.05 p.m.

labour market. Therefore, much of the job creation needed to

meet the expectations of the populations in the Palestinian

territory would have to come from higher levels of economic

growth, particularly the private sector.

The peace process depended on the support of the

75. ILO was willing to assist the Palestinian authority in
putting in place policies and institutions to reduce
unemployment. ILO, in collaboration with international

11



